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Historic Accomplishments of the Missouri DAR (new title)

The Role of MSSDAR in Missouri’s Historic Preservation Movement
(Each ppt slide should have a Short caption – what is it? Not all have one)

One of the founding objectives of the National Society of Daughters of the American Revolution is “to perpetuate the memory and spirit of the men and women who achieved American Independence by the acquisition and protection of historical spots and the erection of monuments.” This last idea led the Daughters to become pioneers in the historic preservation field. 

Once the National Society of Daughters of the American Revolution was founded in 1890, it quickly became the largest lineage organization in the United States. One reason it was so popular is that during the Victorian Period people became very interested in family history and ancestry and began organizing large family reunions. Family cemeteries became extremely popular in order to honor American forebears. 

At a time when women were not allowed to participate in the political process, the DAR offered an opportunity to have their work recognized in a substantial way by the federal government. Through the DAR and other organizations, women were able to make material contributions to public life. Becoming a member of DAR guaranteed a certain amount of prestige for women of the period. 
Caroline Scott Harrison, First Lady, was invited to serve as the first President General of the society. It was common for the DAR to be entertained by the President and the first lady at the white house during Continental Congress. The United States government chartered the organization, and the group reported to Congress. 
Here are the Missouri Daughters, circa 1911. Have a close look at their faces. They can hardly wait to get out there and make a difference. Many women’s organizations or clubs were established this era. It was common for women to be members of several of the groups, but many saw the interest of the Daughters in historic preservation as distinctive.
At the 1922 state conference, the assembly was welcomed by each of these groups. Think about our current state conference greetings. Imagine if every organization was permitted to bring greetings. One of the earliest organizations for women, created solely to preserve the home of George Washington at Mt. Vernon, had a great influence on the work of the Daughters. Does anyone recognize these ladies? Who has heard of the Mount Vernon Ladies Association?
Ann Pamela Cunningham founded the Mount Vernon Ladies Association in 1853 to save Mt. Vernon for future generations. Motivated by patriotism and armed with talent for organization and public relations, Cunningham proved that women could be successful leaders in historic preservation. Cunningham built a structure for her organization which might sound familiar:

Regent as the head of the association
Vice-Regent from each participating state 

Lady Managers to assist the officers
When I studied their1912 list of the vice-regents, most of the named women were also members of the DAR.

The Daughters would long remember the efforts of Ann Pamela Cunningham. In 1908 a tribute to her appeared in an article in an issue of the DAR Magazine. One of the DAR’s sharpest critics, Margaret Gibbs, does give us credit for preservation “The DAR’s original work in restoration predates Williamsburg and similar projects by nearly half a century. If it had not been for the DAR struggles to rehabilitate the actual sticks and stones and mortar, many of our traditional landmarks would have become mere illustrations in history books.” With a devotion to the early American period, DAR members took part in important preservation efforts around the country. Massachusetts Daughters saved the Bulﬁnch State House in 1896. 

In Philadelphia, chapters joined together to save the Betsy Ross House, and the Philadelphia Chapter began the restoration of the Independence Hall in 1895. The chapter reported the banquet room as restored at a cost of $6000 in 1897. After careful research, they restored the room by using Alexander Hamilton’s original plans for it. Ironically, the Pennsylvania legislature did not appropriate funds for that restoration of Independence Hall until 1910.

The Rebecca Motte Chapter in Charleston, South Carolina, worked to save the Old Exchange Building in 1899 for its potential to educate the public on early American history. It was not until 1913 that the property was transferred to the chapter for preservation.
In Augusta, Georgia, the movement to save Meadow Garden, the home of George Walton, a signer of the Declaration of Independence, determined that funds of our National Society would not be used in local preservation projects. At the crux of the argument against the purchase of properties by the National Society was the problem of funding the building of a national headquarters for the society. 
As one delegate said, in support of the purchase, “Let us build with one hand and preserve with the other.” Although the decision may have left the Georgia Daughters disappointed, the Daughters continued their work to save local landmarks. 
The completion of Memorial Continental Hall in 1910 freed both hands for the work of the society and sparked new confidence in the Daughters to accomplish any goal set before them. In Missouri, State Vice Regent Lucy Meriwether reported to the Eleventh Annual Convention, 

“Now that our Hall is finished that it devolves upon us to stand out before the world as a band of women who have carried out General George Washington’s express desire – that a building or buildings be erected in Washington, wherein could be kept the records and names of those who died that our country might live.” 
For one hundred years the United States Congress wrestled with this proposition, all to no avail, until the Daughters of the American Revolution came into being. Behold the result– our magnificent “Hall of Heroes.” Well done, thou good and patriotic women!
Daughters around the country could proudly claim credit for the building of Memorial Continental Hall, as it was described to be the most magnificent building ever erected by women, but they were also eager to make important contributions within their own states. Marie Oliver, Missouri State Regent, asked the same convention: “What may be accomplished by the united effort of such a body of intelligent patriotic women?” 
Midwestern Chapters had a challenge for preserving historic sites in their region. A Michigan Daughter said “There are so few landmarks in this part of the country that it is difficult to find anything interesting. I often envy the chapters of the Eastern cities…. I fear they do not always appreciate their privileges.” Missouri Daughters began seeking ideas for preservation in Missouri. 
Activities were varied among the chapters. 
· The Jane Randolph Jefferson Chapter, for example, sent money to help purchase the Frances Scott Key house as a patriotic shrine. 
· A chapter in Liberty reported on the style, age and condition of eighteen local buildings built between 1820 and 1840 as candidates for preservation. 
· One of the most frequently reported activities was the locating and marking of grave sites belonging to Revolutionary War soldiers. Because the marking of graves was a directive of the National Society, it must have been the predominate focus of the earliest Missouri members. 
By 1910, the state historian Margaret Taylor was ready to tackle new territory. “I felt it was time the dead soldiers rested quietly in their graves, as so much has been done to rescue them from utter oblivion.” She chose instead to read a paper on the Booneslick Road during her report at the state conference in 1910. And so it was the old trails in Missouri that really got these ladies fired up. Sites associated with Westward Expansion, rather than the Revolutionary War, became their interest.
In 1907, Kansas State Regent Emma Stanley announced the completion of the marking of the Santa Fe Trail, by placing ninety-five stone markers across the route. The project inspired Missouri to mark historic trails. 
Mary Houck, regent of the Nancy Hunter Chapter in Cape Girardeau, asked chapters to re-establish the El Camino Real Trail of upper Louisiana. In her words, “This is an era of road building, and what would be more interesting to the happy owners of automobiles than to travel on such a historic road from St. Louis, through Ste, Genevieve and Cape Girardeau to New Madrid? Great work can be done by the Daughters in bringing back to honor and use these old highways.”
Elizabeth B. Gentry of the Kansas City Chapter sent a letter and the map to the Kansas City Star, recommending a highway which would cross the state following the Santa Fe Trail and the Boone’s Lick Road. In 1909 the Daughters secured an appropriation of $3000 from the Missouri legislature to mark the Santa Fe Trail, but unfortunately the money was never disbursed due to a lack of funds in the state treasury.

Gentry and Hope Van Brunt were appointed as vice chairman and chairman of the Santa Fe Trail Commission by the Missouri state Legislature. The Daughters were generous and enthusiastic to be working on a project which garnered much attention in the press. 
As Gentry reported in 1912, “The Arrow Rock Statesman runs a weekly notice of our activities. It says that the D.A.R. has put Arrow Rock again on the map of Missouri.” In all, 33 markers were placed at the Daughters expense. Automobile touring became the most important element to the DAR’s concept of promoting the preservation of Missouri history. 

Elizabeth Gentry formed the Good Roads Committee, which was a very popular and busy committee. When State Regent Marie Oliver addressed the conference in 1910, she pushed the Daughters to get involved in the campaign for Good Roads.
“In this day, when the men of our State are agitating the subject of Good Roads, will not our Daughters awaken to their interests in preserving history and see that the new automobile roads are built as near as possible upon the Santa Fe Trail, the Boons Lick Trail, and the Kings Highway? These three roads of the olden time make almost a connected line across our State from northwest to southeast. .Let us be up and doing and claim our heritage. There is no grander state than Old Missouri; no nobler, prouder women than her Daughters; with their earnestness and effort, they will make old Missouri the grandest of all States.”

The Missouri Daughters began to re-deﬁne the frontier as a second cradle of the nation, just as surely as Revolutionary battlefields had been. Gentry took the “Old Trails Road” from Missouri to a national project. She wrote articles for the DAR Magazine and suggested that the DAR organize an effort to promote a National Old Trails Road: a transcontinental highway, funded by the federal government, following the old trails as much as possible. 
In 1911 she published her plan to link five historic trails to form the road, including the Cumberland Pike, the Boon’s Lick Road, the Santa Fe Trail, Kearney’s Road, and the Oregon Trail. She called the plan The National Old Trails Road: A National Highway as a Monument to the Pioneer Men and Women. The National Society then named Gentry the chairman of National Old Trail Road Committee in 1912. 
This road project was a big deal. Many roads had totally deteriorated during the railroad era, when long distances were more commonly traveled by train. With the popularity of the automobile, good roads and infrastructure became important again. By the 1920s, at least 250 named trails or roads and about one hundred ‘trail organizations’ had been established to promote particular roads.
The Daughters felt their plan was superior to all other plans, stating that The National Old Trail Road should be a patriotic, national monument and would be a uniting force. As the debate over 250 different proposed roads was bound to be contaminated with political agendas, commercial interests, and regional and civic rivalry, the Daughters saw their proposal as the antidote. In later years, Madonna of the Trail statues were placed in twelve of the Old Trails states to represent the “pioneer mother.” 

The universal campaign for good roads was just the type of public platform many Daughters found appealing. Gentry planned a “Women’s National Movement” to awaken interest in a National Highway from Ocean to Ocean along the old trails of the Pioneers. Gentry stated, “this Committee wishes to join the hands of all women living along these trails to forge a human chain across the continent: a chain with links of patriotism, history and sentiment.” Gentry became an inspiration to the Daughters when she reported on completing one of the Field excursions. She compared her companions to the frontiersmen of history, who had first surveyed the old trails. 
Automobile touring by the Daughters was front page news. The headline of the Daily Republican announced “D.A.R. Committee on Auto Tour over Old King’s Highway: Gathering Data for Preservation of Historical Places along the Oldest Road in Missouri” on November 11, 1914. The account of the expedition, which is likely to have been organized similarly to others carried out by the Daughters, describes the party as being driven by Miss Marguerite Oliver in her big Hudson car. 
Jennie Foristell, Missouri State registrar said she was “proud to feel she was helping a little by motoring forty miles to distribute promotional materials.” At a time when daredevils were traveling great distances by automobile, the historian of the Elizabeth Benton Chapter, Katherine Huttig, logged 3800 miles long the route in one year. 

The coming of WWI caused the trail marking projects of the DAR to be put on hold.

By the 1920’s the mood in Missouri was patriotic as the state celebrated a centennial anniversary in 1921 with a renewed interest in Missouri’s pioneer heritage. Here are the Elizabeth Benton Chapter members, partying it up during the state’s centennial, back on the prowl for projects.
In 1912, when the Missouri DAR had been promoting the National Old Trails Road, the Daughters had furnished a room in the Old Tavern at Arrow Rock with “period furniture and historical objects,” as a means of teaching Missouri history to the passerby.” It was common for chapters to make pilgrimages to the Old Tavern for chapter meetings.

In 1922, members of the Osage Chapter (Sedalia) visited the Old Tavern and discovered that Chicago University had made an offer to purchase many of the historic relics. The Osage Chapter returned to Sedalia, Regent Emma Crandall Evans, pretty excited about this news. The chapter appointed a committee to draft a resolution to be presented at the DAR state conference.

“BE IT RESOLVED, that the Osage Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution do hereby recommend and urge that the State Conference of the Daughters of the American Revolution, take immediate action upon the legislative and executive departments of the State to induce and cause the State of Missouri to purchase the said tavern, together with all of its said relics and antiques to be held and owned by the State to the end that they may be preserved and kept on exhibition in the interest of the patriotism and education and enlightenment of all travelers on the said Old Trails Road and that the people of the State of Missouri and the generations to come may have the opportunity and great pleasure of viewing and studying this historic place and these relics and learning there from something of manner and ways of their ancestors and the early days of the country, all of which we believe will promote love and pride of our State and stimulate patriotism in all who pass that way.” Mrs. Charles V. Evans, Regent, Emma Crandall Evans, Regent of the Osage Chapter
Evans presented the resolution at the annual state conference held in Mexico, Missouri, in October of 1922. The state regent appointed a committee to organize the Daughters into action. The Daughters sent letters to every state official, senator and representative. A bill was drafted and presented and it passed! 

On September 27, 1923, the historic building was transferred to the state of Missouri, and put into the hands of the Missouri State Society to restore, operate and maintain. The celebration was brief, as the women quickly realized that money would be needed immediately for repairs and operation of the Tavern. After a lengthy discussion, the delegation approved $300 for the immediate repairs. 

Mrs. Kitt stated to the conference, “The Daughters will maintain the Tavern without any further cost to the State. We knew about the repairs when we asked for it, and we are going to do this in a businesslike way, just like any man or company would buy it and want to make something out of it. We cannot do it in one or two or three years, but ﬁve years from now we will all be proud of the Arrow Rock Tavern.” The Daughters created the Board of Management and a plan for action.
This is my hero, Alice Graves. We all know the old adage, “Be careful what you wish for…”  Funds were needed to reinforce the foundation, replace rotted ﬂoor sills, repair the ﬂues and chimneys, re-plaster some of the walls, and place a new roof.
Mrs. Graves, Chairman of the Finance Committee, reminded chapters that “the restoration and preservation of historic buildings and sites are fundamental objects for which we are organized and should have the heartiest support of all loyal Daughters.” For the first time, Missouri Daughters included the word “buildings” in their interpretation of the National Society’s historic preservation mandate. 

The Missouri Daughters carefully planned and paid for the restoration of the Old Tavern, with the help of the Restoration Committee and an additional appropriation from the state of Missouri. When presented with the difficult decisions about the restoration work, the Daughters chose to restore the building, rather than renovate it. 
“We decided to restore the building in the strictest sense of the word….It meant an intensive study of its original construction, the careful preservation of the old walls and chimneys, stairs and ﬁreplaces and its protection from future damage from ﬁre and weather.” 
The team studied the windows and determined that only two were original. They decided to restore the windows to the original shape and size. The committee emphasized its role as preservationists when it reported that no changes had been made to the structure which would compromise the integrity of the historic building. 
The funds needed to complete the restoration were far and above the amount the Daughters had anticipated. The building opened to the public on May 19, 1926, and remains open to the public today. It represents the earliest effort to preserve a building in Missouri.
With the passage of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, the field of historic preservation professionalized. Missouri established the Missouri State Historical Survey and Planning Office (SHPO), under the direction of the Missouri State Park Board, in 1968. 
Your very own Pat Holmes was part of history working in that office. The very first statewide plan for preservation credits the Missouri State Society Daughters of the American Revolution with sponsoring the first documented restoration project, the Old Tavern at Arrow Rock. 
Missouri Daughters were pioneers in the Field of historic preservation in Missouri. While we no longer maintain our headquarters there, we do continue to set the example for standards of preservation in Missouri at Roslyn Heights. You, as Missouri Daughters, share an important role in our rich and fascinating history. As Mrs. Meriwether said in 1910, “Well done, thou good and patriotic women!”[image: image1.png]



